

Statement of Licensing Policy 2026 - 2031

Date of Publication: XXXX



Ambitious Stockport, creating opportunities for everyone



Foreword by the Cabinet Member for Communities, Culture and Public Protection

Stockport is proud of its vibrant hospitality, leisure, and cultural sectors, which play a vital role in supporting our local economy and creating spaces where residents and visitors can enjoy safe and welcoming experiences. Well-managed licensed premises contribute significantly to our borough's appeal as a place to live, work, and visit, and they provide important opportunities for employment and investment.

I am pleased to introduce Stockport's Statement of Licensing Policy for 2026–2031. This policy sets out how we will continue to regulate licensed premises in a way that promotes the four Licensing Objectives: the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance, and the protection of children from harm.

This policy reflects our commitment to balancing economic growth with social responsibility. It encourages innovation and diversity within the licensed trade while ensuring that public safety and community wellbeing remain at the heart of decision-making. By working in partnership with businesses, residents, and responsible authorities, we aim to foster a thriving night-time economy that is inclusive, safe, and sustainable.

I would like to thank all those who contributed to the consultation process. Your input has helped shape a policy that supports Stockport's ambitions for regeneration and prosperity, while safeguarding the interests of our communities. Together, we can ensure that licensing continues to make a positive contribution to the borough's future

Cllr Dan Oliver



Contents

- 1. Introduction
- 2. Consultation for the Statement of Licensing Policy
- 3. About this Statement of Licensing Policy
- 4. The Integration of Policies
- 5. Matters within the Control of the Premises Licence / Glub Certificate Holder
- 6. Planning and the need for Licensed Premises
- 7. The Licensing Objectives and Aims
- 8. Licensable Activities
- 9. Authorisations and Permissions
- 10. The Licensing Process
- 11. Conditions
- 12. Licensable Hours
- 13. Addressing the Licensing Objectives
- 14. Cumulative Impact
- 15. Late Night Levy
- 16. Early Morning Restriction Orders
- 17. Suspension of Premises for Non-Payment of Fees
- 18. Enforcement



1. Introduction

- 1.1 Stockport Council is the Licensing Authority for the area of Stockport under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and is responsible for the regulation of licensing matters within the borough.
- 1.2 The Act requires the Council to produce a Statement of Licensing Policy every 5 years. This policy was published on XX and will be due for review no later than XX 2031. It can be reviewed at any time during the 5 year period, with any changes being subject to statutory consultation.
- 1.3 This Statement of Licensing Policy is published under Section 5 of the Licensing Act and states how Stockport Council, as the Licensing Authority, will exercise its licensing functions in order to promote the four Licensing Objectives which are:
 - The prevention of crime and disorder;
 - The prevention of public nuisance;
 - Public safety; and
 - The protection of children from harm.
- 1.4 The aim of the policy is to actively promote the Licensing Objectives, which in turn fully complement and support the values and priorities of the Council. The Council Plan for 2024 to 2027 has 4 big ambitions to create opportunities for everyone in the borough; build on the progress the Council has made since publishing the last Council Plan, and to step up the pace of change and delivery by:
 - Investment, regeneration and creating jobs;
 - Education, work and skills;
 - Wellbeing in neighbourhoods; and
 - Delivering for those who need it most.
- 1.5 The policy recognises the need to support residents and visitors in order to provide a safe and desirable environment to promote the wellbeing of those who live, work and visit, and realises the importance of well-run licensed premises in a vibrant and thriving local economy.
- 1.6 Well managed businesses and events licensed under the Licensing Act make an invaluable contribution to the economy within Stockport. A diverse licensed



leisure and entertainment sector has a major role to play in making Stockport a place people want to live, work and visit, providing important social and community assets for both residents and businesses. This also supports related sectors such as the retail and tourism industry. For example, premises may wish to provide alcohol-free options which can attract a more diverse population group including those who do not consume alcohol and families with young children.

- 1.7 Premises that are not managed responsibly can impact negatively on the area causing problems directly related to the Licensing Objectives such as crime and disorder, anti-social behaviour, public nuisance e.g. noise issues and littering, light pollution, continuing to serve customers alcohol who are already drunk, public safety and wellbeing, and underage drinking. All of these things put extra pressure on public services which can be addressed at source by a robust and effective licensing regime.
- 1.8 Licensing regulation can assist in promoting and improving public health, particularly with regard to alcohol consumption and reducing alcohol related harm across the borough. Whilst the Council appreciates that there is currently no Licensing Objective in relation to public health, it recognises the positive impact that the promotion of all of the Licensing Objectives can have on improving public health.
- 1.9 The policy aims to contribute significantly towards helping the Council achieve it's ambitions, through the robust regulation of licensed premises and by working closely with other regulatory agencies and businesses.
- 1.10 The interpretation of words and phrases in this Policy has the same meaning as those in the Act or in guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act.
- 1.11 The Council has several distinct functions under the Act, including acting as both the Licensing Authority and also as a number of different responsible authorities. Therefore the policy refers to the Council and licensing regulator as the Licensing Authority and individual responsible authorities by their departmental name, even though they are all part of the same Council.



2. Consultation

- 2.1 In accordance with section 5(3) of the Act, the following were consulted in order to finalise this policy:
 - Chief Officer of Police in Stockport:
 - Local Fire Authority;
 - · Director of Public Health;
 - Those that the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of Premises Licences in Stockport;
 - Those that the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of Club Premises Certificates in Stockport;
 - Those persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of holders of Personal Licences issued in Stockport; and
 - Those persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of businesses and residents in Stockport.
- 2.2 Other non-statutory persons and bodies were also consulted.





3. About this Policy

- 3.1 The overall aim of this policy is to actively promote the Licensing Objectives. It seeks to provide information and guidance to applicants, responsible authorities and any person who may be affected or interested in licensing matters. It clarifies the manner in which the Council will consider applications and how it will approach matters relating to licensing. It will also set out what the Licensing Authority expects of licence holders and how they can contribute to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives and the overall priorities and key outcomes of the Council.
- 3.2 In preparing and publishing this policy, the guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the Home Office under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 has been taken into account along with good practice advice issued by approved government advisory bodies.
- 3.3 The policy has regard for the Council's statutory responsibility under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 for the health of the population of Stockport and notes that it is a public health priority to reduce alcohol related harm.
- 3.4 The policy also takes into account the Council's statutory duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, to have regard to the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder, the misuse of drugs and alcohol related offending in the area.
- 3.5 The Licensing Authority will always have regard for it's obligations under the Equality Act 2010, and will ensure that the policy does not disproportionately impact any particular equality group.
- 3.6 The Licensing Authority has taken account of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Live Music Act 2012 and the Deregulation Act 2015, which brought in legislative changes to the Act which have been reflected in this policy.
- 3.7 The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting children from harm and recognises how an effective licensing regime can assist and inform other agencies to protect children from alcohol related neglect and abuse including preventing and tackling child sexual exploitation (CSE).



- 3.8 Nothing in this Policy prevents any one person or body applying for a variety of current permissions under the Act. Neither does it override the right of a responsible authority, other person or business to make a representation or seek a review of a licence or certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in the Act.
- 3.9 The policy does not prejudice the requirement for the Licensing Authority to consider each application on its own merits. The Licensing Authority will only depart from this policy where there is satisfactory evidence or information that the Licensing Objectives will be met in full. In cases where a departure occurs, the Licensing Authority will provide full reasons for the departure.
- 3.10 To achieve their aims, the Licensing Authority is committed to working in partnership with responsible authorities, local businesses, residents and other groups towards ensuring the continued success of the policy in achieving the statutory objectives of the Act and supporting the Council Plan.
- 3.11 In considering these matters the Licensing Authority will focus on the four statutory Licensing Objectives.
- 3.12 Responsible authorities are public bodies that must be fully notified of certain applications. They are entitled to make representations to the Licensing Authority in relation to the application for the grant, variation or review of a premises licence. The responsible authorities specified in the Act are:
 - Stockport Council, in it's capacity as the following:
 - Licensing Authority;
 - Health and Safety;
 - Environmental Health;
 - Weights and Measures;
 - Planning; and
 - Director of Public Health.
 - Chief Officer of Police, in their capacity as the following:
 - Prevention of crime and disorder; and
 - Body that represents those who are responsible for, or interested in, matters relating to the protection of children from harm.
 - Local Fire and Rescue Authority.



4. Integration of Policies

- 4.1 Whilst the overall aim of this policy is to promote the Licensing Objectives, it is recognised that there are other key Council policies in place which also contribute to the Council Plan. This policy integrates as far as is reasonably possible with those strategies including the Stockport Council via Public Health, to assist Stockport in achieving its key outcomes.
- 4.2 Duplication with other legislation and regulatory agencies will be avoided as far as possible, and conditions will only be attached to licences which are necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
- 4.3 Licensing regulation forms part of an overall strategy to address issues associated with licensed premises. The Licensing Authority will work in partnership with other Council departments and agencies with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives. Other powers and services include:
 - Planning control;
 - Positive measures to create safe and attractive town and district centres;
 - Powers of the Council to designate public areas where the consumption of alcohol is not permitted;
 - Police powers for the confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas;
 - Police enforcement of disorder and anti-social behaviour;
 - Prosecution of personal licence holders and staff for selling alcohol to persons who are under age or drunk;
 - Police powers to close down instantly any licensed premises on the grounds of disorder or likelihood of disorder or excessive noise emanating from the premises;
 - Powers of the Council under the Environmental Protection Act and Health and Safety at Work Act;
 - Power of a Responsible Authority, or other person to seek a review of a licence;
 - Individual drinking banning orders;



- Police and Licensing Authority advice and support for licensees including 'pub-watch';
- Advice, support and regulation on fire safety and related issues by Greater
 Manchester Fire and Rescue Service; and
- Alcohol misuse and dependency treatment and support services.

4.4 The Safer Stockport Partnership (SSP)

4.4.1 The SSP consists of statutory and voluntary organisations that work together to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour. Such local partnerships are a requirement of the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act. The Safer Stockport Partnership Plan for 2022 – 2025 explains what the partnership is here to do, what its priorities are and how they will be achieved <u>Decision - Safer Stockport Partnership Plan 2022/25 - Stockport Council</u>

4.5 Stockport Drug and Alcohol Services

- 4.5.1 The Safer Stockport Partnership brings together Stockport Council and Greater Manchester Police with partners in the NHS and other public and voluntary sector services to address crime, anti-social behaviour and drug and alcohol misuse in the borough. It has adopted a three-year strategy to address drug and alcohol misuse, which sets out to reduce the health and social harms experienced by individuals, families and communities Stockport drug and alcohol service ::

 Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust
- 4.5.2 The Stockport Drug and Alcohol Service offers a free, confidential support service for adults aged 26 and over who are experiencing issues with drugs or alcohol. The service is commissioned to support harm reduction and recovery within the community. Delivered by Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust, in partnership with Intuitive Thinking Skills and the Acorn Recovery Project, the service provides an integrated approach to prevention, early intervention, treatment, and recovery. This service forms part of Stockport's strategic approach to reduce alcohol and drug-related harm, contributing to safer licensed premises and healthier communities. Licence holders are encouraged to work collaboratively with local services where appropriate, particularly in addressing issues around substance misuse.



4.5.3 For anyone under the age of 26, the MOSAIC service is commissioned to provide support Mosaic self-referral - Stockport Council

4.6 Greater Manchester Drug and Alcohol Strategy

4.6.1 The Greater Manchester Drug and Alcohol Strategy provides opportunities to address drug and alcohol issues at a Greater Manchester Level. Drug and Alcohol Strategy - Greater Manchester Combined Authority

4.7 Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

- 4.7.1 The Licensing Authority is committed to protecting children from harm. It recognises that alcohol use, misuse and abuse is one of the recurring key 'parental factors' in child protection and safeguarding, often contributing to parental neglect of children, abuse and violence within families.
- 4.7.2 Alcohol is also reported as a factor in CSE. Young people are encouraged or coerced into drinking alcohol, leaving them vulnerable to perpetrators of CSE. Licensed premises have been implicated nationally in the involvement with CSE, either taking place on the licensed premises or the premises being used for the purposes of grooming and enticement.
- 4.7.3 The Licensing Authority will report any issues of concern regarding the safeguarding of children to the appropriate safeguarding authorities and will act on any reports received in relation to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. Where serious concerns and/or any criminal investigations in relation to the abuse of children are in connection with a licensed premises, the Licensing Authority will work with other agencies and consider a review of the premises licence / certificate, and where appropriate take further action.
- 4.7.4 The Licensing Authority expects licence holders and operators of licensed premises:
 - To understand that the sexual exploitation or abuse of a child is a criminal offence;
 - To ensure that they and their employees are fully aware of the signs of CSE and how to report it; and
 - To report any concerns to the appropriate authorities.



4.8 Vulnerability & Gender Based Violence - Violence Against Women and Girls

- 4.8.1 The Council are committed to ensuring Stockport is a safe and welcoming town for everyone, regardless of their gender, ethnicity, sexuality, beliefs or background.
- 4.8.2 This policy aims to ensure that vulnerability and women's safety is an important consideration in decision-making in the night-time and late-night economy throughout the town. The licensing authority will keep the prevalence, prevention and reporting of sexual harassment and misconduct and gender-based violence under review.
- 4.8.3 Operators are expected to develop a harm-reduction policy for their business, especially at the types of premises where incidents of physical and sexual violence are most frequently reported. This policy shall include sufficient measures to protect and provide support to customers in spiking, coercive control and other vulnerability incidents.
- 4.8.4 The Council aims to promote best practices with the safety initiative 'Ask for Angela' being rolled out to bars, clubs and other licensed businesses in Stockport Borough. People who feel unsafe, vulnerable or threatened can discreetly seek help by approaching venue staff and asking them for 'Angela'. This code-phrase will indicate to staff that they require help with their situation and a trained member of staff will then look to support and assist them. This might be through reuniting them with a friend, seeing them to a taxi, or by calling venue security and/or the police.

4.9 Public Health

- 4.9.1 Although Public Health is not currently a licensing objective under the Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Authority recognises the significant role that alcohol-related harm plays in affecting the health and wellbeing of local communities, and is committed to supporting the aims of Stockport's Health and Wellbeing Strategy Health and Wellbeing Board Stockport Council
- 4.9.2 The Licensing Authority values the close working relationship with colleagues in Public Health. This collaboration enables the sharing of local intelligence and evidence on alcohol-related harm, which supports more informed licensing decisions. Joint working helps to identify areas of concern, develop targeted



interventions, and promote community wellbeing through a coordinated approach to reducing alcohol-related harm across the borough.

- 4.9.3 Public health data may be used to:
 - Inform representations on applications where there is evidence of alcohol-related harm;
 - Support the development of local strategies to reduce alcohol misuse;
 - Identify areas of cumulative impact or concern, whilst liaising with relevant teams who may provide additional intelligence such as the locality or neighbourhood team;
 - Promote responsible retailing and consumption of alcohol.
- 4.9.4 The Licensing Authority encourages applicants to consider the wider health implications of their operations and to adopt practices that support the reduction of alcohol-related harm.

4.10 Data Sharing to Reduce Alcohol-Related Harm

- 4.10.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the value of data sharing in supporting the licensing objectives, particularly the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, and the prevention of public nuisance.
- 4.10.2 The Licensing Authority will work collaboratively with relevant partners, including Public Health, Greater Manchester Police, NHS services, and community safety teams, where practicable, to share anonymised and aggregated data relating to alcohol-related harm. This may include:
 - Hospital admissions and emergency department attendances linked to alcohol;
 - Crime and anti-social behaviour statistics;
 - Licensing enforcement actions and complaints; and
 - Community feedback and local intelligence.
- 4.10.3 This data will be used to:
 - Inform licensing decisions and policy reviews;
 - Identify areas experiencing disproportionate alcohol-related impacts;
 - Support targeted interventions and partnership working; and
 - Monitor the effectiveness of licensing measures over time.



- 4.10.4 The Licensing Authority would also encourage applicants to consider relevant local data when preparing applications, particularly in areas identified as having higher levels of alcohol-related harm.
- 4.10.5 Stockport Council will develop and maintain a Licensing Data Matrix. This advisory tool will be developed and maintained by Public Health to collate and analyse key data from a range of sources. The matrix will be reviewed and updated regularly and used to guide a proportionate, risk-based approach to licensing across the borough.





5. Matters within the Control of the Premises Licence/Club Premises Certificate Holder

- 5.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that licensing legislation is not the primary mechanism for the general control of individuals once they have left licensed premises, and therefore out of the direct control of the licence holder.
- 5.2 The Licensing Authority will focus on matters which are within the control of the individual licence holder and others who are granted relevant permissions.
- 5.3 Licence holders will also be expected to take reasonable steps to prevent the occurrence of anything that impacts negatively on the promotion of the Licensing Objectives immediately outside of their premises, such as on the pavement, beer garden or smoking shelter where and to the extent that these matters are within their control.
- The Licensing Authority will expect applicants to consider and make appropriate provisions to ensure that there is no negative impact on any of the Licensing Objectives as a result of activity in, or around the vicinity of the licensed premises.
- 5.5 It will normally be the responsibility of the premises licence holder to ensure that the managers, designated premises supervisors and door supervisors are competent and appropriately trained, and, where required, registered with the Security Industry Association (SIA) and in accordance with current legal requirements.
- 5.6 Licence holders are expected to take all reasonably practicable steps to mitigate or negate crime and disorder from occurring immediately outside or in the vicinity of their licensed premise. Examples could include (but are not limited to) ensuring a staggered egress, encouraging the prompt dispersal of customers or providing a taxi free phone service.



6. Planning and Licensed Premises

- 6.1 There are a number of key differences between licensing and planning control. Licensing is concerned with the operation and management of the premises whereas planning control relates to the use of the premises.
- 6.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that there should be a clear separation of the licensing, planning and building controls to avoid duplication and inefficiency. Licensing applications should not be seen as a re-run of any planning application. Licensing Committees are not bound by decisions made by a planning committee and vice versa.
- 6.3 The granting of a premises licence does not negate the need to obtain the appropriate planning permission and/or building control approval.
- 6.4 When exercising its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority will not be influenced by a question of need, unless there is a Cumulative Impact Policy in place for the area in which the premises is situated. The issue of whether or not there is a need for a particular premises is a commercial matter and not relevant to the Licensing Authority's considerations.
- There may be circumstances when, as a condition of planning permission, a terminal hour has been set for the use of premises for commercial purposes. Where these hours are different to the licensed hours, the earlier closing time must be observed. Any premises operating in breach of their planning permission would be liable to enforcement action under planning law.
- 6.6 Building Regulations govern a variety of issues which directly contribute to the Licensing Objectives, including means of escape, structural integrity, accessibility and public safety. Building Regulation Approval and Completion Certificates may be required prior to the use of the premises for licensable activities.
- 6.7 The Licensing Authority supports the application of the **Agent of Change** principle, which places the responsibility for mitigating impacts on the party introducing a new use or change in use to an area. In the context of licensing, this means:
 - Where new residential development is proposed near existing licensed premises, it is the responsibility of the developer to ensure adequate noise mitigation measures are in place.



- Conversely, where a new licensed premises is proposed near existing
 residential properties or other sensitive uses, it is the responsibility of the
 applicant to demonstrate how they will prevent public nuisance and
 promote the licensing objectives.
- 6.8 The Licensing Authority will consider the Agent of Change principle when assessing applications, particularly where there is potential for conflict between residential and licensed uses. Applicants are encouraged to:
 - Provide noise impact assessments where appropriate;
 - Demonstrate how sound insulation, layout, and operational practices will minimise public nuisance and disturbance, including excessive noise;
 - Engage with local residents and planning officers early in the application process.
- 6.9 This approach supports a balanced and sustainable town centre and neighbourhood economy, where both residential amenity and a vibrant licensed sector can coexist.





7. The Licensing Objectives and Aims

- 7.1 The Council has a statutory duty to exercise its licensing functions with a view to promoting the four Licensing Objectives set out in Section 4 of the Act.
- 7.2 The Licensing Objectives are:
 - The prevention of crime and disorder;
 - Public Safety;
 - The prevention of public nuisance; and
 - The protection of children from harm.
- 7.3 Each objective is of equal importance for the purposes of this policy and the promotion of the objectives is of primary consideration all times.
- 7.4 The legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These are vitally important and are the principal aims of the Licensing Authority which make a significant contribution to the key outcomes of the Council Plan. They include:
 - Protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;
 - Giving the Police and Licensing Authorities the powers they need to effectively manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are causing problems;
 - Recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises
 play in our local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on
 business, encouraging innovation and supporting responsible premises;
 - Providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and
 - Enabling greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may affect them.



8. Licensable Activities

- 8.1 This policy relates to all of the activities that must be licensed under the provisions of the Act, namely:
 - The sale by retail of alcohol;
 - The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of a member of the club;
 - The provision of regulated entertainment (for audiences over 500 people and/or that which takes place between 11pm and 8am); and
 - The provision of late night refreshment.
- 8.2 Premises are only permitted to provide any of the above activities once they have obtained authorisation from the Council in its role as the Licensing Authority.
- 8.3 The meaning of the licensable activity 'regulated entertainment' is complex and has been subject to a series of Government deregulation measures. It covers live or recorded music, dance, plays, films and some sporting activities, however there are a number of exemptions and restrictions on the types of activities subject to licensing. In addition to this, the Deregulation Act 2015 and Live Music Act 2012 means that live and recorded music at certain times of the day and in certain circumstances, is no longer regulated.
- 8.4 An authorisation for regulated entertainment is however always required for all of the above activities that take place before 8am and after 11pm unless exempted under any other provision of the Act.



9. Authorisations and Permissions

- 9.1 The Licensing Authority is empowered to grant, vary, review, revoke or refuse the following authorisations or permissions:
 - Premises licence to use a premises for licensable activities;
 - Club Premises Certificate to allow a qualifying club to engage in qualifying club activities as set out in Section 1 of the Act;
 - Temporary Event Notice (TEN) a notification to carry out licensable activities at a temporary event.
 - Personal licence to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol from premises in respect of which there is a premises licence.





10. The Licensing Process

- 10.1 Licensing is about the regulation of licensable activities on licensed premises, clubs and at temporary events within the terms of the Act.
- 10.2 The Licensing Authority is committed to ensuring the highest levels of customer service for applicants, responsible authorities and interested parties, by providing high quality advice and information. Officers will assist applicants in completing applications as far as possible within their remit and without prejudice, including providing advise and the consideration of relevant conditions where appropriate, as far as is practicable. This is an important part of strengthening and complementing the existing relationship between the Licensing Authority and the licensed trade.
- 10.3 Licences can be issued under the following circumstances:
 - By officers acting under delegated powers;
 - Following consideration by the full Licensing, Environment and Safety Committee (LEAS); or
 - Following consideration by a Sub-Committee of LEAS.
- 10.4 Applicants are advised to consult with the Licensing Authority and local residents before submitting applications, to promote transparency and address community concerns early in the process.
- 10.5 All applications must be complete and accompanied by the required documentation and fee, or they will be rejected and returned to the applicant.
- 10.6 Applicants are encouraged to submit applications and supporting documents electronically. The Licensing Authority will continue to explore and implement digital innovations where possible.

10.7 Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates

- 10.7.1 Applications must be made to the Licensing Authority on the prescribed forms which detail the application and the licensable activities applied for, as well as specifying during which times and on which days they will be carried out.
- 10.7.2 The applicant must address the Licensing Objectives through completion of the Operating Schedule where they should set out any steps they propose to



- take in order to promote the Licensing Objectives. These steps may then form the conditions volunteered by the applicant, which will be attached to the licence.
- 10.7.3 The Operating Schedule is a document which must be submitted with a licence application and must contain the information required by Section 17 of the Act. The Operating Schedule must include the steps which the applicant proposes to take to promote the Licensing Objectives. The Licensing Authority requires applicants to address all of the areas in this policy where they are relevant to the proposed licensable activity.
- 10.7.4 A copy of the application must also be provided to the responsible authorities, the responsibility of which depends on the format of the application:

 - Application submitted electronically
 the Licensing Authority must provide a copy to the responsible authorities.
- 10.7.5 If a responsible authority or interested party submits a relevant representation, then the Licensing Authority's discretion is engaged to attach additional conditions to a licence to meet those representations at a hearing of the Licensing, Environment and Safety Sub-Committee, if the Authority considers this to be appropriate in the individual circumstances of each application.
- 10.7.6 The Licensing Authority will process all applications taking into account any prescribed timescales in the Act, and where there are no timescales, within a reasonable time.
- 10.7.7 There is a public consultation period lasting for 28 days beginning from the first day after the application was received by the Licensing Authority. The application must be advertised in accordance with the Act by the applicant and the Licensing Authority within 10 working days of the application and in accordance with the Act.
- 10.7.8 If a responsible authority or interested party considers that the Operating Schedule does not adequately address any particular Licensing Objective, they may make a relevant representation to the Licensing Authority within the consultation period.
- 10.7.9 Representations may also be submitted in support of an application and need not just relate to the negative impact of a licence.



- 10.7.10 Responsible authorities and any other persons have equal rights to make representations in respect of any application for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of a premises licence or club premises certificate regardless of their geographic proximity to the premises.
- 10.7.11 Any other persons may act in their own right, or they may request an individual or group to represent them. This may include a legal representative, a friend, an MP or a local ward or parish councillor, all of whom can all act in such a capacity.
- 10.7.12 Any representations received in relation to the application are considered relevant only if they relate to an issue that could adversely or positively impact upon one or more of the Licensing Objectives. An officer of the Licensing Authority will decide if the representation is relevant and will refuse any that are not deemed to be so. They will also refuse any representation that they consider to be frivolous or vexatious.
- 10.7.13 Where an application for a licence or certificate has been made lawfully and there have been no relevant representations, the Licensing Authority will grant the application and only the conditions volunteered by the applicant through the Operating Schedule and mandatory conditions specified in the Act can be attached to the premises licence. The licence will usually be issued by officers of the Licensing Authority acting under delegated powers.
- 10.7.14 Where an application has not been made lawfully, the application will be returned to the applicant and must be resubmitted to the Licensing Authority. The timescales specified by the Act will be restarted on receipt of a valid application.
- 10.7.15 Where the application has been made lawfully and any relevant representations have been made, the application will be determined at a hearing of a Sub-Committee of the Licensing, Environment and Safety Committee.
- 10.7.16 Before the hearing, all parties may liaise to seek a compromise to resolve the issues raised in the representations. For example, reducing the hours for the proposed activities, adding extra conditions, or removing proposed activities entirely, may address any concerns the objectors have had. In such circumstances, if the applicant agrees to the proposals and all parties agree that a hearing is not necessary, it will preclude the need for the application to be determined by the Licensing Sub-Committee. The licence will then usually be granted by an officer of the Licensing Authority with any conditions volunteered



by the applicant attached along with any mandatory conditions specified in the Act.

- 10.7.17 If the officer is not prepared to approve the agreement, they must have a hearing with all parties to allow the Sub-Committee to determine the application. The Licensing Authority may either grant or reject the application at the hearing. The Licensing Authority may also impose additional conditions, restrict licensable activities or trading hours, all of which must be appropriate to promoting the Licensing Objectives, proportionate and address the other general principles set out in the Act.
- 10.7.18 There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against the decision of the Licensing Authority by any party to the original Licensing Sub-Committee hearing.
- 10.7.19 Once granted, an annual fee is due on Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates. Non-payment of annual fees will usually result in suspension of a licence or certificate.

10.7.20 Shadow licences

A Shadow Licence refers to a Premises Licence that mirrors or closely resembles an existing licence for the same location. It is typically held by the property owner or another party as a precautionary measure, ensuring that licensing rights are maintained if the original licence is revoked, suspended, or otherwise lapses. When submitting an application for a Shadow Licence, applicants should clearly outline the circumstances under which the Shadow Licence would be activated or relied upon. This clarity helps prevent confusion or overlap in regulatory oversight.

In cases where a premises is subject to a review and a Shadow Licence is also in place, the Licensing Authority expects that both licences be considered together. A concurrent review of the Shadow Licence should be submitted to ensure the process is comprehensive and not undermined by the existence of a secondary licence.



10.8 Variations to a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate

- 10.8.1 Where a premises licence holder wishes to amend the licence, in most cases the Act permits an application to vary the licence to be made rather than requiring an application for a new premises licence. The process to be followed depends on the nature of the variation and its potential impact on the Licensing Objectives.
- 10.8.2 There are simplified processes for making applications, or notifying changes in the following cases:
 - A change of the name or address of someone named in the licence;
 - An application to vary the licence to specify a new individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor;
 - A request to be removed as the Designated Premises Supervisor;
 - An application by a licence holder in relation to a community premises
 authorised to sell alcohol to remove the usual mandatory conditions as set
 out in section 19 of the Act concerning the supervision of alcohol sales by
 a personal licence holder and the need for a Designated Premises
 Supervisor who holds a personal licence; and
 - An application for a minor variation of a premises licence or club premises certificate.
- 10.8.3 Licensed premises or activities should not be altered in such a way as to make it impossible to comply with the existing licence and any conditions attached to it, without first seeking a variation of the premises licence. The applicant will need to propose the steps that will be taken to ensure the promotion of the Licensing Objectives in light of the variation. The application for variation will enable the responsible authorities to consider whether the Operating Schedule is acceptable.

10.8.4 Minor Variations

The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to clearly set out the reasons why the proposal will not have an adverse impact on the Licensing Objectives. Where reasons are not provided, less weight will be given to the potential of the variation to not have an adverse impact on the Licensing Objectives. In general, applications to add conditions will be considered as an exception to this presumption.



The Licensing Authority will take into account the following matters in considering whether Licensing Objectives could be adversely affected by a proposed change:

- Any change in circumstance;
- Any increase in capacity resulting from the variation;
- Any pre-agreement of the variation by responsible authorities;
- The licensing history of the premises and applicant; and/or
- The measures in this policy.

10.8.5 Full/Major Variations

Any other changes to the licence or certificate require an application to vary the licence under sections 34 or 84 of the Act and will be considered to be a major variation to the licence.

The major variation process is the same as for a new licence application as described in Paragraph 10.5 of this Policy.

10.9 Reviews of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate

- 10.9.1 At any time following the grant of an authorisation, any person or responsible authority may submit an application for the review of the licence or certificate.
- 10.9.2 Applications for a review must relate to one or more of the Licensing

 Objectives and must not be considered as frivolous, vexatious or repetitious by
 the Licensing Authority.
- 10.9.3 A review application is subject to a similar consultation period to that for a new licence or major variation, during which representations may be made in support of or against the application. Unless it is an summary or expedited review application made by the Police for serious crime and disorder. Please refer to Home Office guidance in respect of Summary Reviews <a href="majorated-section-support-section-section-section-support-section-sect
- 10.9.4 Reviews are determined at a hearing of the Licensing, Environment and Safety Sub-Committee, unless a compromise can be reached between all parties and the review application is withdrawn before the meeting is held.



- 10.9.5 At a review hearing, the Licensing Authority may take any of the following measures that are considered appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives:
 - Modify the conditions of the licence;
 - Reduce the hours that any licensable activity can take place;
 - Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
 - Remove the Designated Premises Supervisor;
 - Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and/or
 - Revoke the licence.
- 10.9.6 In cases where there is evidence that any of the Licensing Objectives are being undermined, revocation of the licence will be seriously considered by the Licensing Authority, even in the first instance.
- 10.9.7 There is a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against the decision of the Licensing Authority by any party to the original Licensing Sub-Committee hearing. In the event of an appeal by the licence holder, the decision of the Licensing Authority will not take effect until the appeal is determined or withdrawn, except in the case of a Summary Review which can only be brought by the Police.
- 10.9.8 When any problems are identified at licenced premises, depending on the seriousness of the issues, responsible authorities are expected to work with the licence holder to achieve compliance. Where appropriate, a pre-review meeting may be held to develop a Performance Improvement Plan, to address the issues within a given timeframe. Where the plan has not achieved the desired outcome, the responsible authority should make an application to review the licence. If the matter is deemed to be so serious that it will require an immediate application for review, this will preclude the need for a Pre-Review Meeting.

10.10 Personal Licences

- 10.10.1 A Personal Licence authorises a person to sell or supply, or authorise the sale or supply, of alcohol on a licensed premises.
- 10.10.2 A Personal Licence is granted by the Licensing Authority where the person ordinarily resides and has effect until surrendered or revoked. The licence



is portable although changes of home address must be notified to the issuing Licensing Authority.

- 10.10.3 In order to be eligible to apply for a Personal Licence, a person must:
 - Be 18 years old or over;
 - Possess an accredited licensing qualification;
 - Have not forfeited a Personal Licence in the past 5 years; and
 - Have no unspent convictions (offences related to dishonesty, licensed premises or a Personal Licence, firearms, violence, drink drive and other alcohol-related offences in the UK or abroad).
- 10.10.4 Where an applicant for a Personal Licence has an unspent conviction for a relevant offence, the Licensing Authority will consult with the Police, who will consider whether an objection to the licence is appropriate based upon a likely breach of the crime and prevention licence objective.
- 10.10.5 Where the Police have raised an objection, the application will be determined at a Sub-Committee hearing of the Licensing, Environment and Safety Committee.
- 10.10.6 The Licensing Authority may either grant or reject the application.

10.11 Temporary Event Notices (TENs)

- 10.11.1 TENs can be used to authorise premises for licensable activities for temporary periods of time or specific occasions.
- 10.11.2 The Licensing Authority does not grant a TEN. The organiser notifies the Licensing Authority of their intention to hold an event and only the Police and the Environmental Health function can intervene to prevent it from taking place or agree amendments to the TEN.
- 10.11.3 TENs are subject to a number of limitations. The Licensing Authority will reject the notice and return to the premises user where any of these limits are exceeded.
- 10.11.4 The limitations on a TEN are:
 - The total number of times a person (the 'premises user') may give a TEN –
 50 times per calendar year for a Personal Licence holder, and 5 times
 per calendar year for anyone without a Personal Licence;



- The number of times a premises user may give a Late TEN 10 times per calendar year for a Personal Licence holder, and 2 times per calendar year for anyone without a Personal Licence;
- The number of times a TEN may be given for any particular premises 15 times per calendar year;
- The length of time a TEN may last 168 hours or 7 days;
- The maximum total duration of the events authorised by TENs in relation to individual premises - 21 days per calendar year;
- The scale of the event in terms of the maximum number of people attending at any one time, including people working at the event – 499;
 and
- The maximum period between events authorised under separate TENs in relation to the same premises by the same premises user 24 hours.
- 10.11.5 The Licensing Authority must acknowledge receipt of the TEN within 1 working day if it is given lawfully.
- 10.11.6 There are 2 types of TEN which are subject to different processes. The reference to 'working days' below as defined by the Act and is any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, Christmas Day, Good Friday or a day that is a bank holiday in England and Wales.
- 10.11.7 The working days' notice is exclusive of the day on which the TEN is given and the day on which the event is to start, however a working day is a period of 24 hours beginning at midnight, so a temporary event that continues beyond midnight (e.g. 8pm 2am), this counts as two days out of the 21 day maximum.

10.11.8 Standard TEN

- A standard TEN must be given no later than 10 clear working days before the event to which it relates.
- If the required notice is not given, the TEN cannot be acknowledged and the licensable activity cannot take place.
- The Police and/or Environmental Health are empowered to make representations in relation to a TEN within 3 working days of their receipt of the TEN and it must be in relation to the promotion of any of the Licensing Objectives.



- Where a relevant representation is received, a Licensing,
 Environment and Safety Sub-Committee hearing will take place to determine the TEN.
- The Police or Environmental Health can withdraw their representation at any time if they are satisfied that the organiser has addressed their concerns and amended the proposal accordingly.
- Where the TEN is in connection with licensable activities at a premises that already holds a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate, the Licensing Authority may impose any of the conditions from that authorisation onto the TEN, providing the conditions are consistent with the event. Where the Licensing Authority considers that this is appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives, they will give notice to the premises user that includes a statement of the conditions imposed. Copies of this notice will be provided to the Police and Environmental Health.
- The Licensing Authority may either decide to allow the licensable activities
 to go ahead as stated in the TEN or if the Committee is not satisfied that
 the event will ensure the promotion of the Licensing Objectives the
 Licensing Authority will issue a counter-notice against the TEN and the
 event cannot go ahead.

10.11.9 Late TEN

- Must be given no more than 9 days and no less than 5 working days before the first day of the event.
- A maximum of 10 late TENs can be submitted per year by a Personal Licence holder, and 2 per year for other people. Late TENs also count towards the total maximum number of TENs permitted during a calendar year. Where either of these limits have been exceeded, a rejection letter will be issued.
- The Police and/or the Environmental Health function at the Council are empowered to make representations in relation to a late TEN within 3 working days of their receipt of the TEN. A representation can be made



on the grounds of any Licensing Objective. Where a representation is made, the Licensing Authority will issue a counter notice against the TEN.

10.12 Designated Premises Supervisor

- 10.12.1 Under the Act, all licences that authorise the sale of alcohol must contain details of the DPS.
- 10.12.2 The DPS is the key person who will usually be charged with the day-to-day management of the premises by the Premises Licence holder.
- 10.12.3 The Licensing Authority will not normally impose conditions on a Premises
 Licence relating to the management competency of the DPS unless poor
 management competency could give rise to issues relating to the Licensing
 Objectives and it is considered appropriate to do so in the circumstances.
- 10.12.4 All applications to appoint a person as the DPS must be made on the prescribed forms and be accompanied by a form of consent signed by that person.
- 10.12.5 Applicants for new licences that authorise the sale of alcohol are required to specify the individual who they wish to be the DPS which will be included on the premises licence.
- 10.12.6 Responsible authorities are encouraged to develop constructive working relationships with DPS with a view to developing effective partnerships with the licensed trade. The Licensing Authority expects licence holders to engage with responsible authorities in order to facilitate the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.
- 10.12.7 In exceptional circumstances, the Police may object to the appointment of an individual as a DPS where they believe that the appointment would undermine the prevention of crime and disorder objective. The Police can also seek a review of a Premises Licence at any stage after the appointment of a DPS on any grounds relating to the licencing objectives if problems arise relating to the performance of the DPS. In both cases this would be by way of a Licensing, Environment and Safety Sub-Committee hearing.
- 10.12.8 Up to date contact details for the Designated Premise Supervisor should be provided and maintained with the Licensing Authority, in order that the DPS can be contacted with the minimum of delays. These details should include an up to date direct telephone number and/or an e-mail address.



11. Conditions

- 11.1 The Act covers a wide variety of premises that require licences, including cinemas, concert halls, theatres, nightclubs, pubs, cafes, restaurants and fast food outlets. Each of these types of premises present a mixture of risks, with many common to most premises and others unique to a particular operation. It is essential that a premises safeguards users against these risks as far as is practicable. This can be done by way of attaching conditions to a licence or certificate.
- 11.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that any breaches of conditions of licence automatically become criminal offences under section 136 of the Act, and could lead to imprisonment and/or a fine for non-compliance. The penalties reflect the seriousness of such breaches in relation to the Licensing Objectives and risk to the public. Therefore particular care must be taken in the wording of conditions, both when volunteered by the applicant and when imposed by the Licensing Authority.
- 11.3 The Licensing Authority will operate from a pool of model conditions based on this Policy (Appendix 1 to be added pre-consultation) and the Secretary of State's Guidance which will be available on the Council website to assist applicants and responsible authorities. Not all conditions will be relevant to all premises, and should be tailored as such, but will enable some clarity and consistency to be developed on conditions and to ensure effective enforcement. The pool of model conditions is not and must not be taken as a checklist of appropriate conditions, but is to assist applicants in the formation of proportionate and appropriate conditions, and the list may is subject to change.
- 11.4 Applicants must submit conditions that are detailed and enforceable and should refrain from proposing conditions that are vague and open to interpretation.
- 11.5 If an applicant can demonstrate that any of these conditions are not relevant and there are no relevant representations received, the licence will be granted without those conditions being attached. The applicant may also put forward their own conditions for consideration by the Licensing Authority providing the Licensing Objectives are fully met. The Licensing Authority will be fair and vigilant in considering all applications.



- 11.6 The Licensing Authority may also impose other conditions which are consistent with meeting the Licensing Objectives. Conditions to be imposed on licences will be specific to the individual premises and events.
- 11.7 The Licensing Authority may reinstate or impose conditions relating to live music following a review of a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate relating to premises authorised to supply alcohol for consumption on the premises, where it can be demonstrated that live music has undermined the promotion of the Licensing Objectives and such action is considered appropriate.
- 11.8 While the Licensing Authority will seek to ensure the promotion of the Licensing Objectives by licensed premises in Stockport, it is recognised that conditions can only be imposed that seek to manage the behaviour of customers that fall within the control of the licence holder.
- 11.9 Relevant conditions will not be limited to measures set out in this policy, and the Licensing Authority will consider whether there is evidence that shows it is appropriate to impose a condition specifically to promote one or more of the statutory licensing objectives.
- 11.10 When attaching conditions, the principles to be applied by the Licensing Authority are that conditions will be:
 - Tailored to the premises and licensable activities concerned
 - Appropriate, necessary and proportionate
 - Precise, clear and unambiguous
 - Practical, realistic and enforceable
 - Non-duplicative of existing statutory requirements or offences
 - Self-contained in order that they specify exactly what is required
 - Modern and fit for purpose

11.11 Conditions will not:

- Be applied as standard, or duplicate any offences or statutory requirements, or duties or responsibilities placed on the employer by legislation
- Seek to manage the behaviour of the customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder and their staff
- Require the admission of children to any premises



12. Licensable Hours

- 12.1 The Licensing Authority will consider appropriate hours of licensing on the merits of each individual application.
- 12.2 In order to minimise risks of disturbance to residents, when dealing with new and variation applications, the Licensing Authority encourages applicants to consider the default guidelines for licensable hours, particularly in residential areas:

Public Houses, restaurants, cafés and bars:

- 11pm Sunday to Thursday
- Midnight Friday and Saturday

Nightclubs/Late bars:

- 1am Sunday to Thursday
- 2am Friday and Saturday

Hot food and drink supplied by takeaways, fast food premises:

- Midnight Sunday to Thursdays
- 1am Friday and Saturday

Off- Licences

- 8am to 11pm Monday to Saturday
- 9am to 11pm Sunday
- 12.3 The above hours are default guidelines intended to guide applicants when preparing their Operating Schedules. The above hours are not pre-determined and each application will be considered on its individual merits. The Licensing Authority retains full discretion to approve or refuse applications based on the individual merits and representations received.
- 12.4 Applicants who wish to provide licensable activities outside the hours specified above should ensure that the operating schedule specifies detailed measures to address the Licensing Objectives as detailed in Section 13 of this policy. It is recommended that applicants submit a Community Impact Assessment providing a



detailed assessment which forms part of the overall consideration and not an automatic barrier to extended hours. The Community Impact Assessment should include:

- A clear rationale as to why the circumstances of this premises application requires hours outside of those recommended in the default guidelines;
- Proximity to residential areas, schools, and other sensitive locations;
- Measures to prevent public nuisance and anti-social behaviour/crime and disorder;
- Safeguarding protocols and staff training; and
- A written alcohol sales policy including Challenge 25, refusal logs and incident reporting.
- 12.5 Applicants who wish to trade beyond 23:00hrs in any event, are expected to include mitigation within their operating schedule in respect of safeguarding their premises from crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour, for example off-licences would be expected to consider operating a serving hatch between 23:00 and 06:00hrs.
- 12.6 The Licensing Authority is keen to promote a safe, thriving and diverse night time economy in Stockport and should licensable hours compromise any of the Licensing Objectives then responsible authorities or interested parties are entitled to submit a representation in relation to an application or lodge a review application for an existing licensed premises.
- 12.7 Where relevant representations are received, limitations on the licensable hours may be imposed, e.g. where a premises is known to be a focus of disorder and disturbance late at night.
- 12.8 Reduced licensable hours may be necessary for licensed premises situated in or immediately adjacent to residential areas to ensure that disturbance to local residents is avoided. This will particularly apply in circumstances where, having regard to the location, size and nature of the premises, it is likely that disturbance will be caused to residents in the vicinity of the premises by concentrations of people leaving during late night / early morning hours.
- 12.9 This policy acknowledges that Central Government have introduced a discretionary power that enables Local Authorities to introduce 'Early Morning Restriction Orders' (EMRO). There are no such Orders in place or currently under consideration in Stockport.



13. Addressing the Licensing Objectives

- 13.1 This Section outlines the main areas that should be considered by the applicant, Licensing Authority, responsible authorities and interested parties, in relation to the Licensing Objectives.
- 13.2 The Licensing Authority expects that all applicants for new licences and non-minor variations to be able to demonstrate how relevant risks and likely impacts have been identified and will be addressed through the operating practices of the business, however there is no requirement to do so. We therefore encourage applicants to consult with local residents, responsible authorities and any key stakeholders.

13.3 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

- 13.3.1 The Licensing Authority will have regard to the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and any conditions attached to licences will take into account any local crime prevention strategy such as the Safer Stockport Partnership Plan.
- 13.3.2 When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should firstly identify any particular issues that are likely to impact the promotion of the crime and disorder objective. The applicant should have regard to the particular type of premises and/or activities to be carried out. The applicant should use the Operating Schedule to outline the issues and the steps they will take to address them.
- 13.3.3 The Licensing Authority will consider whether the premises makes, or will make a detrimental contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the application.
- 13.3.4 In order to meet its duty to prevent and reduce crime, the Licensing Authority will consider the location of the premises and the impact, operation and management of the licensable activities.
- 13.3.5 Dependent upon the risks of crime and disorder at certain premises and where existing legislation does not provide adequately for the reduction of crime and disorder, consideration may also be given to conditions that deal with:



- Crime prevention design, including adequate lighting and fittings of the
 premises, appropriate ratio of table to chairs to customers and for areas to
 be allocated to seated customers, a prescribed capacity and supervision
 of car parks so as to minimise conflict and opportunities for crime and
 disorder;
- A requirement for SIA door supervisors to control numbers and deny entry
 to individuals who appear drunk, disorderly or intent on crime together with
 the maintenance of an incident book, including arrangements for
 screening for weapons and drugs;
- A gradual egress of customers and their prompt dispersal away from the premises, to avoid flashpoints.
- Other measures to control violent, drunken or abusive behaviour, including exclusion of badly behaved individuals, refusal to serve anyone who is drunk or appears to be drunk, or underage, use of toughened or plastic glasses;
- The removal of drinking vessels and bottles from the premises;
- Clear policies and measures to prevent illegal drugs being brought into and used on the premises;
- Licensed premises must have clear procedures in place for the safe disposal of any illegal drugs found on-site. All incidents involving drug seizure or disposal must be documented and reported to Greater Manchester Police.
- Prostitution or indecency;
- Restrictions on drinking in areas within and outside the premises;
- Discouraging the handling and distribution of stolen, counterfeit, non-duty paid or other illegal goods;
- · Membership of pubwatch or similar;
- The installation and use of CCTV;
- Procedures for checking the ages of young people who appear to be under the age of 25 to ensure alcohol is not sold to those under 18 as part of the 'Challenge 25' strategy;



- Appropriate 'early warning' communication systems with the Police and other licensed premises;
- Searching of customers and staff; and
- A zero-tolerance approach to the sale of new psychoactive substances or 'legal highs'.
- 13.3.6 The presence of CCTV cameras can be an important means of deterring and detecting crime at, and outside licensed premises. Conditions will not just consider a camera, the requirement to maintain cameras in working order, to retain recordings for an appropriate period of time and to make recordings available to the Licensing Authority and Police on request, for example A CCTV system shall be installed and maintained in good working order at the premises. The system must cover all public and licensable areas, including entry and exit points. Recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 28 days and be made available to the Police of authorised officers upon request. All staff must be trained in the operation of the system.
- 13.3.7 Consideration should be given to a condition preventing the use of glass containers to serve alcohol or the taking of alcoholic and other drinks from the premises in open containers, e.g. glasses and open bottles. This may be appropriate to prevent the use of these containers as offensive weapons in surrounding streets after individuals have left the premises. It may also be appropriate to ensure a licensed premises has a regular glass collection service in certain types of venue and to keep control of waste bottle/glass receptacles.
- 13.3.8 It may be appropriate for certain signage to be displayed on or immediately outside the premises in relation to the licensable hours, conditions, prevalence of crime which may affect customers, and restrictions on the admission of children so that the consequences of breaches are clear to customers.
- 13.3.9 The use of door supervisors should be considered for the purpose of promoting the reduction of crime and disorder and to generally provide a safer operation of the premises. Where the use of door supervisors is to be a condition of licence, they must be registered with the Security Industry Authority (SIA), or if superseded, its successor. These conditions may also need to include reference



- to the numbers of door supervisors required, the displaying of name badges, the carrying of proof of registration, where and at what times they should be stationed on the premises and whether at least one female supervisor should be available, e.g. if female customers are to be the subject of body searches.
- 13.3.10 The Licensing Authority may impose conditions relating to drugs for certain types of venue following the receipt of relevant representations to seek to prevent the sale and consumption of drugs and to create a safer environment for those who may have taken them. Where conditions are to be imposed, advice will be sought from the Police. Any conditions relating to clubs will take into account the Safer Clubbing guidelines issued by the Home Office and annexes J and K of the guidance issued under section 182 of the Act.
- 13.3.11 The Police are empowered to close a licence premises where there is production, supply or use of Class A drugs and/or serious nuisance or crime and disorder under the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003.
- 13.3.12 The Licensing Authority will carefully consider Police representations and other conditions relating to the deterrence and prevention of crime and disorder. Performance Improvement Plans will be drawn up in liaison with the police and licence holders to deal with any premises where concerns may arise.
- 13.3.13 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that only a small minority of customers are likely to behave in a way that undermines the Licensing Objectives and this policy should be viewed as part of a framework of measures that can be used to tackle anti-social behaviour in areas where licensed premises are situated.

13.4 Public Safety

- 13.4.1 The Licensing Authority aims to promote high standards of public safety in relation to licensed premises and activities under the Act.
- 13.4.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that the public safety objective is concerned with the physical safety of the customers using the premises and not with Public Health, which is dealt with by other legislation. Where the Local Authority Director of Public Health submits a relevant representation the relevant Licensing Objective is likely to be public safety. This may include where a premises has undermined the objectives in relation to accidents and injury and other harms that may be caused by alcohol consumption. These issues may also impact on the



- prevention of crime and disorder objective and/or the protection of children from harm objective.
- 13.4.3 When addressing public safety the applicant should initially identify any particular issues which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of the Licensing Objective relating to public safety having regard to the particular type of premises and/or activities proposed. Such steps as are required to deal with the issues should be included in the Operating Schedule.
- 13.4.4 Fire precautions and means of escape from licensed premises are particularly important and the Licensing Authority will have due regard to any representations from the Local Fire and Rescue Authority. Large numbers of people, some who may be under the influence of alcohol must be safely contained, managed and if necessary, evacuated from the premises. The attachment of conditions will not in any way relieve employers of the statutory duty to comply with the requirements of other legislation including the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, and associated regulations.
- 13.4.5 Following a relevant representation, where the Licensing Authority considers that general health and safety duties or the Operating Schedule do not adequately cover the licensable activities specified in the application, conditions may need to be attached to the licence to ensure public safety.
- 13.4.6 The Licensing Authority recognises that special issues may arise in connection with outdoor and large scale events and the applicant should address any relevant issues in the Operating Schedule.
- 13.4.7 Whether or not any risk assessment shows any of the measures to be necessary in the individual circumstances of any premises will depend on a range of factors including the nature and style of the venue, the activities being proposed, the location of the premises and the anticipated users of the premises.
- 13.4.8 Fire safety guides are available at www.manchesterfire.gov.uk
- 13.4.9 Health and Safety advice is available from the Health and Safety Executive at www.hse.gov.uk and Workplace health and safety Stockport Council
- 13.4.10 In certain premises where existing legislation does not provide adequately for the safety of staff, the public and associated living accommodation, consideration should also be given to conditions that ensure following:



- Sufficient fire safety arrangements are in place to detect and warn occupants and all other relevant persons;
- Adequate fire separation and means of escape is provided between different premises in the same building;
- Adequate arrangements are in place to enable the safe evacuation of disabled persons in the event of an emergency; and
- Adequate information is available to disabled persons on the premises in relation to the means of evacuation.
- 13.4.11 The Licensing Authority will only include an occupant capacity condition on a licence or certificate where there is a genuine fear or problem with overcrowding and it is considered appropriate for public safety. This will be determined in consultation with the local Fire and Rescue Authority. If the figure is fixed in accordance with any risk assessment required by legislation then that figure will be used.

13.5 The Prevention of Public Nuisance

- 13.5.1 When addressing public nuisance, the applicant should identify any particular issues which are likely to adversely affect the promotion of the public nuisance objective. This is having regard to the particular type of premises and/or activities. Such steps as are required to deal with these issues should be included within the Operating Schedule in the form of a public nuisance mitigation plan. This should detail how the applicant will:
 - Control noise from music, patrons and deliveries;.
 - Manage waste and litter, including provision of bins;
 - Prevent light pollution from signage or external lighting;
 - Minimise queuing and dispersal impacts on neighbours;
 - Engage with local residents and businesses where appropriate.
- 13.5.2 If relevant representations are received, the Licensing Authority may impose conditions to prevent public nuisance.
- 13.5.3 In considering the potential impact of licensed premises on the surrounding locality the Licensing Authority, when in receipt of any relevant representations, will take into account the type of entertainment activity proposed, hours of operation, the capacity of the premises, the character of the area and the



proximity to local residents. Consideration will be given to the potential steps which could be taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring. This will apply particularly in areas where there is residential accommodation in the proximity of the premises.

- 13.5.4 In certain premises where existing legislation does not provide adequately for the prevention of public nuisance, consideration might be given to conditions that ensure that:
 - Noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises so as to cause a
 nuisance to nearby properties. This might be achieved by a simple
 requirement to keep doors and windows at the premises closed, the
 installation of soundproofing or to use noise limiters on amplification
 equipment used at the premises;
 - Minimise and control any noise from customers arriving and departing from the premises such as prominent, clear and legible notices are displayed at all exits requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area quietly;
 - The use of explosives, pyrotechnics and fireworks which could cause disturbance in surrounding areas are restricted. This might also include that this type of equipment is not managed by any persons who have consumed alcohol and that adequate safety precautions are in place;
 - That refuse is disposed of outside of the premises at times that will minimise the disturbance to nearby properties;
 - Noxious smells from the premises are not permitted so as to cause a nuisance to nearby properties and the premises are properly vented;
 - Bright or flashing lights on or outside licensed premises do not cause a
 nuisance to nearby properties. Any such condition will be balanced
 against the benefit to the prevention of crime and disorder in relation to the
 positioning of lighting in certain places;
 - Restrictions on the times when music or other licensable activities may take place and may include technical restrictions on sound levels at the premises;
 - The prevention of littering in the vicinity, particularly from late night takeaways including measures planned to remove any litter that occurs; and



- Any queuing to enter the premises is diverted away from residential properties and entrances to neighbouring premises and that any queues are managed to prevent disturbance and obstruction.
- 13.5.5 If the proposed Operating Schedule fails to address any noise nuisance issues, the Environmental Health function may request that an independent acoustic report is conducted from which they may use any recommendation to propose amendments to the Operating Schedule or suggest conditions for consideration at any hearing.
- 13.5.6 The Licensing Authority will not impose conditions on licensed premises that cannot be directly controlled, or on matters not related to the vicinity of the premises, or it's delivery operatives/partners, if alcohol delivery is permitted.
- 13.5.7 The Licensing Authority will consider along with any other relevant information:
 - The location and context of the premises, including proximity to residential areas, schools, and hospitals.
 - Whether the premises is in or near a Cumulative Impact Zone or an area with known nuisance issues.
 - Relevant data from Environmental Health, Greater Manchester Police, and Neighbourhoods Teams.

13.6 The Protection of Children from Harm

- 13.6.1 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as exposure to adult themes and strong language.
- 13.6.2 The Licensing Authority recognises that there are many types of premises and circumstances where it is appropriate for children to be present on licensed premises. It seeks to encourage this where appropriate to support the social and economic advantages that a diverse licensed industry can provide. It also recognises that there are circumstances where it is appropriate to limit or prevent access by children in order to promote the protection of children from harm Licensing Objective.
- 13.6.3 When addressing the protection of children from harm, the applicant should identify any particular issues which are likely to cause concern in relation



- to children, having regard to the particular type of premises or licensable activities. The applicant should outline the steps required to deal with these issues which should be included in the Operating Schedule.
- 13.6.4 The Licensing Authority will not impose conditions which restrict or prevent access by children unless this is appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives.
- 13.6.5 In determining a specified cut-off time or whether access by children should be prevented, the Licensing Authority will take into account any concerns of responsible authorities or other persons who have made representations. The Licensing Authority will also take into account the steps set out by the applicant in the Operating Schedule which will be taken to protect children from harm and the type of event for which age restrictions may be appropriate.
- 13.6.6 Where there are matters that give rise to serious concerns and the restriction of access may not ensure adequate protection of children from harm, children should be excluded, in particular where:
 - There have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or premises
 with a reputation for, or inadequate arrangement to deter underage
 drinking. This includes any action taken regarding test purchases in
 relation to the supply of alcohol;
 - There is a known association with, or inadequate arrangements to deter drug taking or dealing;
 - There is a strong element of gambling on the premises;
 - Entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided;
 - There are inadequate arrangements to protect children from the supply and use of other products which it is illegal to supply to children; and/or
 - The Licensing Authority deems there to be inadequate controls on the times during which children may be present on the premises.
- 13.6.7 Matters which the Licensing Authority will take into consideration include:
 - Whether there are effective measures to check the age of those young people who appear to be under the age of 25, to ensure alcohol is not sold to those under 18 and those under 16 are accompanied in alcohol led premises;



- Whether the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or primary purpose;
- The hour to which accompanied children under 16 are proposed to be on the premises where the exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises is the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;
- The likelihood of children being attracted to the premises by the nature of activities or facilities provided, whether or not these are licensed; and/or
- Whether there is evidence heavy, binge or underage drinking on the premises.
- 13.6.8 Where the Licensing Authority has concerns about the protection of children from harm on the premises, options will include:
 - Limitations on the hours when children may be present;
 - Age limitations below 18;
 - Limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;
 - Access limited to parts of the premises;
 - Requirements for accompanying adults; and
 - Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are taking place.
- In respect of all licensed premises where alcohol is usually supplied for consumption on the premises and in light of any relevant representations being received, very careful consideration will be given by the Licensing Authority before permitting children under 16 years, who are unaccompanied by an adult, to be or remain on the premises after 9pm, even when no supplies of alcohol are taking place, such as an under 18 disco. This is an upper limit and does not imply that this limit will be permitted for all relevant applications. In any event each case will be dealt with on its own merits.
- 13.6.10 Where large numbers of children are likely to be present on any licensed premises, such as a children's show or pantomime, the Licensing Authority may require the presence of an appropriate number of adult staff who have provided a satisfactory criminal history check (DBS), to ensure their safety and protection from harm. The exact ratio will be assessed in respect of each individual application and is dependent on the type and size of the premises and the



- control measures in place as outlined within the Operating Schedule, and the particular group of children likely to visit the premises.
- 13.6.11 In premises where existing legislation does not provide adequately for the protection of children from harm, consideration might also be given to conditions that deal with:
 - The prevention of the unlawful supply, consumption and use of alcohol and drugs and any other products that it is illegal to supply to children;
 - Restrictions on access to the premises by children to the whole or any part of the premises, including times when children may not be present;
 - The hours of day during which age restrictions should and should not apply;
 - The type of event or activity in respect of which no age restrictions may be needed;
 - Types of events or activities which give rise to a greater need for age restrictions than normal, such as adult entertainment or drinks promotions events;
 - The production of an authenticated proof of age before a sale is made and a Challenge 25 policy. This will not be limited to PASS accredited proof of age schemes but also photo-driving licences and passports;
 - The adequate training of staff in relation to ensuring there are no underage sales of alcohol;
 - The satisfactory recording of staff training in relation to the conditions of licence; and
 - A zero tolerance approach to the sale of new psychoactive substances or 'legal highs'.
- 13.6.12 Evidence of proof of age is relevant to both the prevention of crime and disorder and protection of children from harm objectives. The Licensing Authority expects a Challenge 25 policy to be in place for all premises that supply alcohol.
- 13.6.13 Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Licensing Authority will expect age restrictions to be complied with in accordance with the British Board of Film Classifications (BBFC) recommendations. Where a film has not been classified by the BBFC the Licensing Authority will consider whether it is appropriate to provide a local classification. When setting a local classification the Licensing



Authority will have regard to the BBFC's guidelines. In considering applications, the Licensing Authority will take into account any evidence that age restrictions for cinema exhibitions have not been adhered to.

13.7 Selling Alcohol Responsibly

- 13.7.1 Schedule 4 to the Policing and Crime Act 2009 and the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) (Amendment) Order 2014 gives the mandatory conditions relating to drinks promotions. The Home Office has issued guidance on these conditions which are available to view on the website Guidance on mandatory licensing conditions GOV.UK. Any applicant who intends to carry out drinks promotions should have regard for this guidance. However the Licensing Authority is aware of the risks of increased consumption and intoxication associated with alcohol promotions, particularly those involving low-priced drinks, and encourages licensees and managers of both on and off-licensed premises to avoid such activities.
- 13.7.2 When considering any relevant representations which demonstrate a clear causal link between sales promotions or discounting and an adverse impact on any of the Licensing Objectives, on or in the vicinity of the premises, it is appropriate for the Licensing Authority to consider whether further conditions are necessary prohibiting irresponsible sales promotions or discounting of prices of alcoholic drinks are necessary.
- 13.7.3 The Portman Group operates a Code of Practice regarding the Naming,
 Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks on behalf of the alcohol
 industry. The Code seeks to ensure that drinks are packaged and promoted in a
 socially responsible manner and only to those who are over 18 years
 old. Complaints about products under the Code are considered by an
 Independent Complaints Panel and if the packaging or point of sale advertising of
 the product is found to be in breach of the Code, the Portman Group may issue a
 'Retailer Alert Bulletin' to notify retailers of the decision regarding future sales and
 advertising of the product.
- 13.7.4 Where appropriate and necessary, the Licensing Authority may consider attaching conditions to licences that require compliance with the Retailer Alert Bulletins from the Portman Group.



- 13.7.5 The Licensing Authority will not use the Licensing Policy to control prices or hinder free and fair competition in the licensed industry.
- 13.7.6 The Police do not encourage the sale of single, high-strength cans of alcohol. Where these are sold, the Licence holder must ensure that the sales of these items does not negatively impact upon crime and disorder.
- 13.7.6 The Licensing Authority considers it reasonable to expect those who hold licences and persons involved in the sale of alcohol to be able to understand the terms of the licence and their legal obligations. It is also expected that those making sales of alcohol can understand and converse in the English language and to be able to read and write in English so as to be able to understand the licence and to be able to complete necessary documents such as refusals books and training records.
- 13.7.7 Where relevant representations are made, and a lack of understanding of basic written and/or spoken English contributes to the issues raised, the Licensing Authority may consider, where appropriate, conditions that require the applicant to and associated staff to attend a 'Basic Skills' course at a cost to the applicant.
- 13.7.8 It is important for applicants to note the mandatory condition prohibiting the sale of alcohol below the cost of duty plus VAT. Guidance on this mandatory condition can be found on the www.gov.uk website.

13.8 Alcohol in Public Places

- 13.8.1 The Local Authority has adopted powers to designate part of its area as places where alcohol may not be consumed in public.
- 13.8.2 In considering applications and reviews, the Licensing Authority will have regard to the impact of licensed premises on the observance of the designated area controls. This is likely to be particularly relevant to sales of alcohol in open containers for consumption off the premises and unauthorised removal of alcohol in open containers, which have been supplied for consumption on the premises.

13.9 Alcohol Delivery Services

13.9.1 The Licensing Authority considers that there are particular risks associated with delivery services for alcohol and expects measures consistent with those outlined in this policy to be included in the Operating Schedule.



- 13.9.2 The Licensing Authority expects applicants to implement age verification procedures at both the point of sale and delivery stages with a Challenge 25 policy to be implemented at the point of delivery.
- 13.9.3 Licence holders must ensure that delivery staff have received appropriate training in procedures relating to requesting and identifying proof of age and implement these procedures as standard. Measures should be taken to ensure that customers are made aware that receipt of orders that contain alcohol must be by an adult.
- 13.9.4 Any promotional material including the name of the business and website should be consistent with the responsible sale of alcohol.
- 13.9.5 Any website URL or telephone numbers are expected to be provided to the Licensing Authority.
- 13.9.6 Licence holders are expected to use their discretion to ensure that deliveries of alcohol are refused in situations experiencing alcohol related nuisance or disorder.
- 13.9.7 Where the applicant wishes to licence a delivery vehicle rather than a building then there are a number of considerations in relation to the safety of the persons in the vehicle that the Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to consider, such as:
 - No cash sales;
 - Payment online or by card machine; and
 - The use of CCTV in the vehicle.
- 13.9.8 Up to date contact details for the Designated Premise Supervisor should be provided and maintained with the Licensing Authority, in order that the DPS can be contacted with the minimum of delays. These details should include an up to date direct telephone number and/or an e-mail address. This is of particular importance where the premises is unsupervised or not staffed at all times.

13.10 Adult Entertainment

13.10.1 The Police and Crime Act 2009 introduced new powers for Councils to control 'Sexual Entertainment' venues. Applicants wishing to provide adult entertainment should contact the Licensing Authority for further advice.



- 13.10.2 The Licensing Authority will have regard to the following additional matters in respect of applications of this nature, including entertainment of a sexual nature such as nudity, striptease and lap dancing.
- 13.10.3 The Licensing Authority will take into account the location of the premises in relation to their proximity to the following uses:
 - Housing and residential accommodation;
 - Schools, play areas, nurseries, children's centres and any educational establishments:
 - Family shopping and leisure areas;
 - Places of worship;
 - Historic buildings and tourist attractions; and
 - Other places where such entertainment takes place.
- 13.10.4 The Licensing Authority also expects licence holders to consider additional measures in their Operating Schedule when applying to provide adult entertainment if they are considered appropriate to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives:
 - The exclusion of under-18s from the premises;
 - A code of conduct for customers;
 - A code of conduct for dancers and performers;
 - Documentary checks for dancers and performers, including proof of age, identity and proof of permission to work (where appropriate); and
 - How the entertainment will be advertised and promoted at the premises.
- 13.10.5 Where an Operating Schedule does not refer to 'adult entertainment' taking place on the premises, the Licensing Authority may place restrictions on the licence that would prevent it from taking place.

13.11 Premises Licences for Large Public Events

13.11.1 The Licensing Authority considers that there are specific risks associated with the holding of large public events, such as concerts, sporting events and festivals. All of which play an important role in Stockport's cultural and economic life. These events sometimes take place in parks, town centres, sports grounds, or other public spaces and can attract significant numbers of attendees.



- 13.11.2 The Licensing Authority expects organisers of events with a capacity of 500 or more people to engage in early planning and consultation with relevant responsible authorities. This includes the Police, Environmental Health, Public Health, and Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service.
- 13.11.3 In considering applications for such events, the Licensing Authority will have particular regard to any previous history of the organiser as well as the level of detail of the event arrangements.
- 13.11.4 In addition to addressing the measures described in this policy, the organisers of such events are expected to address the following:
 - Arranging a meeting for the event, to include all relevant agencies and responsible authorities;
 - Overall event safety control;
 - Production details:
 - Medical and first aid provision;
 - Provide staff with the basic awareness of the use of a defibrillator and where the location of the nearest one is to the premises https://www.defibfinder.uk/
 - Site management and the structural integrity of all temporary structures;
 - Crowd management, stewarding and security;
 - Fire safety and control;
 - Configuration and control of sound systems;
 - Management of any on-site and off-site car parking;
 - Management of concessions and franchises;
 - Provision and maintenance of water supplies;
 - Welfare and provision of information;
 - Provision and maintenance of sanitary facilities;
 - Reception collection and removal of litter and other waste;
 - Engaging with local residents and businesses; and
 - Terrorism prevention plan (See paragraph 13.13).
- 13.11.5 Appropriate measures should also be considered to address issues outside the licensable area including:



- Plans to assist in minimising disruption to the day to day lives of local residents, businesses and existing operations for the duration of the event;
- A robust traffic and transport plan that takes into account the needs of the local community and minimises the impact of visitors to the area for the event, while maintaining a safe and convenient point of access and egress for attendees within the parameters of existing traffic, transport and parking provision;
- A strategy for the control of access to and egress from the licensed premises for the control of disorderly behaviour;
- Providing communication channels for the local community that will enable residents and businesses to access sufficient detailed information prior to the event; and
- Providing a hotline and information phone number for residents and local businesses for the duration of the event.
- 13.11.6 Event organisers should prepare a comprehensive Event Management Plan (EMP), which should consider the above and the following:
 - Site layout and capacity
 - Crowd management and stewarding
 - Medical and first aid provision
 - Fire safety and emergency procedures
 - Noise management and mitigation
 - Alcohol and food safety controls
 - Transport and traffic management
 - Waste and litter control
 - Safeguarding and welfare arrangements
- 13.11.7 The Licensing Authority encourages organisers to liaise with Stockport Council's Safety Advisory Group (SAG), where applicable, to ensure a coordinated and safe approach to event delivery.
- 13.11.8 Where Temporary Event Notices (TENs) are used for large events, organisers must ensure that the cumulative impact of multiple notices is considered and that



the total capacity does not exceed statutory limits. For events exceeding 499 people, a time-limited Premises Licence is usually more appropriate.

- 13.11.9 The Licensing Authority may refer to industry best practice, including:
 - The Purple Guide (Event Industry Forum)
 - The Green Guide (Sports Grounds Safety Authority)
 - Local guidance on noise control and public safety
- 13.11.10 The Licensing Authority will expect event organisers to demonstrate how they will promote the licensing objectives throughout the planning and delivery of the event. This includes ensuring public safety, preventing crime and disorder, minimising public nuisance, and protecting children from harm.
- 13.11.11 Premises close to large-scale public events, for instance those closest to Edgeley Park, should take steps to promote the licensing objectives whenever an event is taking place. This may include, for example on Stockport County FC match days, the use of plastic drinking vessels, SIA Door Supervision, extra staffing, and the admittance of either home or away fans exclusively. Requests may be made to off-licences to suspend their alcohol sales prior to/immediately after public events. It is the expectation that Licence Holders / Designated Premises Supervisors will comply with all reasonable requests from Greater Manchester Police or another relevant authority in respect of public events.

13.12 Drink Spiking Prevention

- 13.12.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the growing concern around drink spiking and its impact on public safety, particularly in the night-time economy.
- 13.12.2 Licence holders are expected to take proactive steps to prevent drink spiking, including:
 - Training staff to identify and respond to suspected spiking incidents.
 - Providing anti-spiking devices (e.g. drink covers or test kits)
 where appropriate.
 - Ensuring prompt reporting of suspected incidents to the police and relevant authorities.
 - Displaying clear signage informing customers of safety measures and how to seek help.



13.12.3 Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority may consider attaching conditions to licences requiring the implementation of anti-spiking measures.

13.13 Counter-Terrorism Preparedness

- 13.13.1 The Licensing Authority recognises the importance of ensuring that licensed premises are prepared for, and resilient to the threat of terrorism.
- 13.13.2 In line with the principles of Martyn's Law (Protect Duty), the Licensing Authority expects licence holders to:
 - Undertake a terrorism risk assessment appropriate to the size and nature of the premises;
 - Implement proportionate security measures to mitigate identified risks;
 - Ensure staff are trained in counter-terrorism awareness, including the ACT (Action Counters Terrorism) e-learning module;
 - Develop and maintain an emergency action plan, including evacuation and lockdown procedures;
 - Display clear signage and provide information to staff and customers on what to do in the event of an incident.
- 13.13.3 The Licensing Authority encourages all venues to engage with local counterterrorism advisors and participate in relevant training and exercises.
- 13.13.4 Where appropriate, the Licensing Authority may consider attaching conditions to licences requiring terrorism preparedness measures.

13.14. Equality and Accessibility

- 13.14.1 The Licensing Authority is committed to promoting equality, diversity, and inclusion in the exercise of its licensing functions. While the Licensing Act 2003 does not include equality as a statutory licensing objective, public authorities are subject to the Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010. This requires licensing authorities to have due regard to the need to:
 - Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, and victimisation;
 - Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not;
 - Foster good relations between different groups.



- 13.14.2 The Licensing Authority expects applicants and licence holders to consider how their premises and operations can be made accessible and inclusive for all members of the community, including:
 - · People with disabilities;
 - Older people;
 - People with sensory impairments or neurodivergency.
- 13.14.3 Measures may include:
 - Step-free access and accessible toilet facilities;
 - Clear signage and lighting;
 - Staff training on inclusive service and safeguarding;
 - Policies that prevent discriminatory entry practices.
- 13.14.4 The Licensing Authority may take into account evidence of discriminatory practices or failure to make reasonable adjustments when considering applications or reviews, where such matters are relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.

13.15 Water Safety

- 13.15.1 Stockport is home to rivers, canals, and open water spaces, particularly in and around the town centre and some out-lying event venues. The Licensing Authority recognises the potential risks posed by proximity to water, especially where alcohol is consumed.
- 13.15.2 Where licensed premises are located near waterways, applicants are expected to assess and mitigate water-related risks. This may include:
 - Installing appropriate barriers or signage;
 - Providing water safety equipment such as life rings or throw lines;
 - Training staff in water safety awareness and emergency response;
 - Including water safety considerations in risk assessments and dispersal plans.
- 13.15.3 The Licensing Authority may consider attaching conditions to licences where water safety is a relevant concern, particularly for late-night venues or outdoor events near water.



13.16 Sustainability and Environmental Responsibility

- 13.16.1 The Licensing Authority encourages all licence holders to operate in a way that supports Stockport's environmental and climate goals.
- 13.16..2 While not a statutory licensing objective, sustainable practices contribute to the wellbeing of communities and reduce the environmental impact of the night-time economy.
- 13.16.3 .Applicants are encouraged to consider:
 - Reducing single-use plastics and packaging;
 - Implementing recycling and waste reduction measures;
 - Using energy-efficient lighting and equipment;
 - Promoting sustainable transport options for staff and patrons;
 - Minimising noise and light pollution.
- 13.16.4 The Licensing Authority supports innovation and good practice in environmental management and may highlight such efforts as part of broader partnership working with local businesses.

13.17 Petrol Forecourts and prevention of drunk driving

- 13.17.1 The Licensing Authority recognises that petrol forecourts present unique considerations under the Licensing Act 2003 and associated safety regulations.
 - Under Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003, premises primarily used as garages (i.e. for the sale of petrol or vehicle maintenance) are excluded from authorising the sale of alcohol, unless they also sell a significant amount of other goods or services.
 - Applicants must demonstrate that the premises are not primarily used as a garage, supported by evidence such as sales data, layout plans, and product range.
 - Applications for the sale of alcohol or hot food must also comply
 with the Dangerous Substances and Explosive Atmospheres Regulations
 2002 (DSEAR), which require robust fire and explosion risk management.
 - The Licensing Authority may consult with Petroleum Enforcement
 Authorities (PEAs) and other responsible authorities to assess safety and suitability. Where alcohol is sold, applicants must include appropriate



safeguarding measures, including Challenge 25, staff training, and secure storage protocols.





14. Cumulative Impact

- 14.1 There are currently no cumulative impact policies in place for Stockport and no current proposal to introduce one.
- 14.2 A Licensing Authority has the option to adopt a cumulative impact policy if a concentration of licensed premises have led to exceptional problems arising in the area and even some distance away from the premises, which have resulted in a negative impact on the Licensing Objectives. In such circumstances the impact of those premises when taken as a whole can sometimes be far greater than that arising from an individual premises. It therefore may not be possible to distinguish individual premises as being the sole cause or even a major contributing factor of a particular problem. In some circumstances it is the cumulative impact of all the premises that can cause a problem for the wider area and which may cause the Licensing Authority to consider such a policy.
- 14.3 The Licensing Authority recognises that cumulative impact policies can restrict the expansion of supply in certain areas and can also result in the removal of improvement pressures from competition on poorly performing businesses. These factors would be considered in the event of the development of any cumulative impact policy and subsequent committee hearings.
- 14.4 Where the Licensing Authority is presented with evidence that exceptional problems have arisen from a concentration of licensed premises in a particular area in Stockport, the Authority may consider the introduction of a cumulative impact policy at any time.
- 14.5 In order to introduce such a policy the Licensing Authority would have to be satisfied that the concentration of licensed premises has resulted in a negative impact on the Licensing Objectives. Once such a policy is in place, the Licensing Authority may refuse applications on this basis.
- 14.6 The Licensing Authority recognises that the publication of a Cumulative Impact Policy is not the only means of addressing the impact of licensed premises in any given area. Other control measures could include:
 - The use of Planning Controls;
 - The use of CCTV systems;
 - Public Spaces Protection Orders;



- Police enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and anti-'social behaviour and closure powers;
- Enforcement of individuals selling alcohol to persons who are drunk;
- The review of premises licences where appropriate.





15. Late Night Levy

- 15.1 There is currently no late night levy in Stockport and no current proposal to introduce one.
- 15.2 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced the power to enable the Licensing Authority to charge a levy to all premises within Stockport who are authorised to sell alcohol late at night, if it chooses.
- 15.3 This is a discretionary power allowing the Council to collect an annual fee from all licensed premises in Stockport that are authorised to sell alcohol between the hours of midnight and 6am. This is as a means of raising a contribution towards the cost of policing the night time economy.
- 15.4 The decision to introduce, vary or end the requirement for the levy would be made by Full Council in conjunction with Greater Manchester Police. The Licensing Authority would consider the appropriateness of any levy as well as its design, prior to any decision to consult on any implementation. Should such a policy be considered in the future, the Licensing Authority would be required to consult with the police, the licence holders that would be affected by any levy, and the residents of Stockport before consideration of any proposal.
- 15.5 The Licensing Authority recognises that any levy introduced would cover all premises within Stockport and not just those premises that are deemed to be causing problems. Therefore serious consideration would be given to the financial risk that could rest at a local level should there be a proposal to introduce such a levy at any time in the future.



16. Early Morning Restriction Orders

- 16.1 There are currently no Early Morning Restriction Orders in Stockport and no current proposal to introduce one.
- 16.2 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 also introduced Early Morning Restriction Orders (EMRO) which are a power enabling the Licensing Authority to prohibit the sale of alcohol for a specified time period between the hours of midnight and 6am in the whole or part of its area, if it is satisfied that this would be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
- 16.3 EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol related crime and disorder in specific areas at specific times, serious public nuisance and other instances of alcohol related anti-social behaviour which is not directly attributable to specific premises.
- 16.4 The Licensing Authority may consider whether an EMRO is appropriate once all other avenues to resolve problems associated with licensed premises and the promotion of the licensing objections have been exhausted. The EMRO can only be an appropriate step to promote the licensing objectives on the basis that it is reasonable, justified and proportionate in the circumstances.
- 16.5 The Licensing Authority may consider the introduction of such orders if evidence were to emerge to support it. This would only be carried out in consultation with responsible authorities, the licensed trade and wider community if evidence suggested that it was appropriate and necessary for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.



17. Non-payment of Annual Fee

- 17.1 The Licensing Authority is required to suspend a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate if the annual fee has not been paid when it is due. Where a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate has been suspended, no licensable activities can be lawfully carried out at the premises until the annual fee has been paid. The suspension will be lifted immediately upon payment of the fee and the licensable activities can be resumed.
- 17.2 If an annual fee has not been paid in accordance with the Council invoice, the licence holder will be notified accordingly by the Licensing Authority and given notice of the date the suspension will take effect.





18. Enforcement

- 18.1 It is vital that licensed premises comply with the terms of their licence and other requirements of the Act. It is equally important that premises operating without the appropriate authorisation are prevented from doing so.
- 18.2 The Licensing Authority will work closely with the responsible authorities in order to most effectively address licensing related matters.
- 18.3 The Licensing Authority will undertake inspections, including joint inspections of premises and enter into other partnership working arrangements with the Police, Fire Authority and other agencies to support the Licensing Objectives.
- 18.4 The Licensing Authority takes a risk-based and proportionate approach to regulatory enforcement and monitoring in relation to the likely impact of the premises on the Licensing Objectives. Therefore higher-risk and problem premises will be targeted for enforcement activity with a lighter-touch approach to those premises that are considered to be low-risk and well managed.
- 18.5 Where possible, the Licensing Authority would expect responsible authorities to work closely with any licence holder in order to successfully resolve issues before formal action is considered, depending on the seriousness of the problems encountered.
- 18.6 The Licensing Authority will work with the licensed trade through the provision of advice, information and education in order to achieve compliance.
- 18.7 Where licence holders do not take the opportunity to work with the Licensing Authority and responsible authorities and the premises is having a negative impact on the Licensing Objectives, this will normally result in formal action being taken such as a review of licence or prosecution for breaches of licence where appropriate.
- 18.8 The principles of enforcement for the Licensing Authority focus on:
 - Assisting and educating businesses and others to meet their legal obligations;
 - Taking firm action against those who flout the law or act irresponsibly; and
 - Promptly acting on issues of concern.



19. Glossary

Act – Refers to the Licensing Act 2003, which governs the licensing of premises and activities in England and Wales.

Agent of Change Principle – A planning concept that places responsibility for mitigating impacts on the party introducing a new use or change in use to an area, such as noise mitigation for new developments near licensed premises.

Alcohol Delivery Services – Services that deliver alcohol to customers off-premises. Subject to age verification and responsible sale requirements, including Challenge 25 at point of delivery.

Ask for Angela – A safety initiative rolled out in licensed venues where customers who feel unsafe can discreetly ask staff for "Angela" to receive help, such as being escorted to safety or contacting the police.

Challenge 25 – A policy requiring anyone who appears under 25 to provide proof of age before being sold alcohol.

Club Premises Certificate – Authorisation allowing qualifying clubs to supply alcohol and provide regulated entertainment to members.

Conditions – Specific requirements attached to a licence to promote the Licensing Objectives. Conditions must be proportionate, clear, and enforceable.

Cumulative Impact – The combined effect of multiple licensed premises in an area, which may lead to problems such as crime or nuisance. May result in a Cumulative Impact Policy restricting new licences.

Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) – A designated area where the Licensing Authority applies stricter controls on new licence applications due to high concentration of licensed premises causing negative impacts.

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) – The individual named on a premises licence who is responsible for day-to-day management of alcohol sales.

Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) – A local authority order that restricts drinking alcohol in certain public areas to reduce anti-social behaviour. (Now replaced by Public Spaces Protection Orders under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.) **Early Morning Restriction Order (EMRO)** – A power enabling the Licensing Authority to prohibit alcohol sales between midnight and 6am in specified areas to reduce crime and nuisance.



Late Night Levy – A discretionary annual charge on premises licensed to sell alcohol between midnight and 6am, intended to fund policing and management of the night-time economy.

Licensable Activities – Activities requiring authorisation under the Licensing Act, including sale of alcohol, provision of regulated entertainment, and late-night refreshment.

Licensing Objectives – The four statutory aims under the Licensing Act:

- 1. Prevention of crime and disorder
- 2. Public safety
- 3. Prevention of public nuisance
- 4. Protection of children from harm

Licensing Authority – The local council responsible for administering and enforcing the Licensing Act.

Martyn's Law (Protect Duty) – Proposed legislation requiring venues to implement counter-terrorism measures, including risk assessments, staff training, and emergency plans.

Operating Schedule – A document submitted with a licence application detailing how the applicant will promote the Licensing Objectives.

Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) – A plan agreed between the Licensing Authority and a licence holder to address issues undermining the Licensing Objectives before formal enforcement action is taken.

Personal Licence – A licence allowing an individual to sell or authorise the sale of alcohol.

Premises Licence – Authorisation for a premises to carry out licensable activities.

Pubwatch – A voluntary scheme where licensees work together with the police and local authorities to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour in licensed premises.

Responsible Authorities – Public bodies entitled to make representations on licence applications, including the Police, Fire Authority, Environmental Health, Public Health, and others.

Safer Stockport Partnership (SSP) – A local partnership of statutory and voluntary organisations working to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour.

Shadow Licence – A secondary premises licence held as a precaution to maintain licensing rights if the primary licence lapses or is revoked.





Statement of Licensing Policy – A document published by the Licensing Authority outlining how it will exercise its functions under the Licensing Act.

Temporary Event Notice (TEN) – A notification allowing licensable activities at temporary events within statutory limits (e.g., up to 499 people, 21 days per year).

APPENDIX 1 – Model Conditions

These model conditions are designed to support applicants, existing licence-holders and responsible authorities under the Licensing Act. They may also be considered by the Licensing, Environment and Safety Sub-Committees during licensing hearings for assistance in composing appropriate conditions when determining licences.

It is not anticipated that all of these conditions will be appropriate for every licence, but where they are appropriate, proportionate and necessary to promote one or more of the Licensing Objectives.

These model conditions are not designed to duplicate any existing statutory requirements placed on new applicants and licensees in respect of the Licensing Act and any other legislation.

These model conditions should be read alongside the Councils Statement of Licensing Policy. This is not a definitive list of model conditions, and applicants may chose to propose any conditions that they consider appropriate to promote the Licensing Objectives.

Failure to comply with conditions of licence can result in serious consequences, including revocation of the premises licence, fines, or even imprisonment for the responsible individuals. It is crucial for all staff to understand and adhere to conditions to ensure the lawful operation of licensed premises.

Mandatory Conditions

There are 5 mandatory conditions that are attached to all premises licences which are designed to restrict irresponsible drinks promotions.

> 1. The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on the relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions relating the premises.



- The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason disability).
- 3. The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonable available.
- 4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
 - (2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.
- 5. The responsible person shall ensure that -
 - (a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customer sin the following measure –

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml and

(b) customers are made aware of these measures.

Model Conditions

Separate consultation to be carried out once full policy is approved.



Thinking







chieving as a Working with
Team Ambition

Showing everyone